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MISCELLANEOUS ORDERS

ANIMAL QUARANTINE and RELATED LAWS

In re: JERRY STOKES, d/b/a STOKES LIVESTOCK CO.

A.Q. Docket No. 96-0007.

Granting of Motion to Dismiss and Cancellation of Hearing filed March 28,
1997.

JamesA. Booth.forComplainant.
RespondenLProse.
Order issuedbyDorothea A. Baker.Administrative Law Judge.

Complainant's Motion to Dismiss, filed March 28, 1997, is hereby granted.
The oral hearing, scheduled for April 29, 30, 1997, i_ cancelled.

Copies hereof shall be served upon the parties.

In re: KEN RICHARDSON.

A.Q. Docket No. 95-0053.
Dismissal filed May 5, 1997.

SusanGolabek.for Complainant
Respondent,Prose.
Order issuedby VictorW. Palmer, Chief AdministrativeLaw Judge.

On the basis of a Motion by Complainant, this case is hereby dismissed.

ANIMAL WELFARE ACT

In re: PAUL KENIS.

AWA Docket No. 95-0040.

Supplemental Order filed March 2i, 1997.

DarleneBolinger,forComplainant.
PatrickC. Valentino,San Diego. California,forRespondent.
Supplemental Order issuedby EdwinS. Bernstein.AdministrativeLaw Judge.



DELTA AIRLINES.INC.
56 Agric. Dec. 751 751

Upon the motion of the complainant, the Animal and Plant Health Inspection
Service, the suspension of respondent's license as an exhibitor under the Animal

Welfare Act, as amended, contained in the Order issued in this case on February
6, 1997, is hereby terminated. This order shall be effective upon issuance.

Copies shall be served upon the parties.

In re: ROBERT L. SPOON and MICHAELE p. SPOON, dba ROCKEY
ROAD MOBILE PET STORE.
AWA Docket No. 96-0037.

Order Dismissing Complaint Without Prejudice filed March 26, 1997.

SharleneA. Deskins, forComplainant.
Resl_ondent,Prose.

Order issued byJames ll_ Hunt,Administrative Law Judge.

Wherefore, for good cause shown the complaint against the Respondents isdismissed without prejudice.

In re: CATHERINE TWISS.
AWA Docket No. 95-0007.

Order filed April 1I, 1997.

JamesD. Holt, forComplainant.
Respondent,Prose.

Order issued by JamesD. Hunt.AdministrativeLaw Judge.

For good cause shown, upon motion of the complainant and without objection
by the respondent, the compla_t in this matter is dismissed without prejudice and

the allegations of the complaint may be included in any subsequent hearinginvolving the respondent.

in re: DELTA AIR LINES, INC., a Georgia Corporation
AWA Docket No. 96-70

Withdrawal of Corn plaint and Termination of Proceedings filed May 27, 1997.

SusanGolabek,forComplainant

KarenL. Abrahams,Atlanta,Georgia,forRespondent.
Order issuedby f_ctor W. Palmer. Chief,4dministrative Law Judge.
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Upon Complainant's Motion and For Good Cause Shown. the complaint is
xvithdrawn and these proceedings are hereby terminated.

FARM SERVICE AGENCY

In re: CLARK V. CHRISTENSON.

FSA Docket No. 97-0001.

Order of Dismissal Without Prejudice filed April 2, 1997.

Jim Wood, for Complainant.
Michael J. McGill. Beresford. SD, for Respondent.
Order issued by Victor W. Palmer, ChiefAdministrativeLaw Judge.

On November'5, 1996, the United States Attorney's Office for the District of

South Dakota, on behalf of the Farm Service Agency, gave notice to Respondent

that it intended to impose an administrative offset on his military reservist's pay,

pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 5514, in order to recover money owed to the government
for an outstanding and overdue loan from the Farmers Home Administration.

Pursuant to the notice Respondent filed an appeal with the hearing clerk on
December 16, 1996. On December 20, 1996, the United States Attorney' sOffice

was notified that the procedural requirements to impose a salary offset had not
been adhered to; and that the notice of intent to offset salary should be revised in

order to comply with 7 C.F.R. § 1951.101 et seq. Subsequently, Respondent

filed for bankruptcy, based on which the U.S. Attorney's Office determined that
it was not feasible to pursue the offset and did not issue an amended notice.

Since the government has decided not to impose the offset at this time, the appeal

petition is dismissed without prejudice.

HORSE PROTECTION ACT

In re: JACKIE McCONNELL.

HPA Docket No. 91-162.

Ruling on Respondent's Motion to Correct Order Lifting Stay Order filed
March 11, 1996.

SharleneA. Deskins,forComplainant
CarthelL. Smith, Lexington,TN, for Respondent,
Order issuedby WilliamG. Jenson, Judicial Officer.
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This proceeding was instituted under the Horse Protection Act, as amended,
(15 U.S.C. § 1821 et seq.), (hereafter Act), by a Complaint filed on April 30,
1991, by the Administrator, Animal and Plant Health Inspection Service, United

States Department of Agriculture. The Complaint alleged that Jackie McConnell,
(hereafter Respondent), entered tbr the purpose of showing or exhibiting a horse
known as "Executive Order" at the Tennessee Walking Horse National

Celebration at Shelbyville, Tennessee, while the horse was sore. On March 4,
1993, Chief Administrative Law Judge Victor W. Palmer, (hereafter Chief ALl),
issued an Initial Decision and Order finding that Respondent violated the Act.
The Chief ALJ assessed a $2,000 civil penalty against Respondent and
disqualified Respondent from showing, exhibiting, or entering any horse and from
judging, managing, or otherwise participating in any horse show, horse
exhibition, or horse sale or auction for 2 years. Both parties appealed to the
Judicial Officer who issued a' Decision and Order on September 16, 1993,
affirming the Decision and Order of the Chief ALJ. In re Jackie McConnell
(I_cision as to Jackie McConnell) 52 Agric. Dec. 1156 (1993).

Respondent appealed to the United States Court of Appeals for the Sixth
Circuit, and filed a Motion for Stay Pending Review with the Judicial Officer who
granted Respondent's motion. In re Jackie McConnell, 52 Agric. Dec. 1172
(1993). The United States Court of Appeals for the Sixth Circuit affirmed the
Decision and Order of the Judicial Officer on April 29, 1994. Jackie McConnell
v. United States Department ofAgricultur_ 23 F.3d 407 (6th Cir. 1994) (Table),
and subsequently denied the Respondent's petition for rehearing. Jackie
McConnel! v United States Department of Agriculture, (Order of June 15, 1994).

Complainant filed a Report to the Judicial Officer and Motion to Lift Stay on
February 9, 1995, which was not opposed by Respondent. The Judicial Officer

lifted the Stay Order on February 14, 1995, In re Jackie McConnell, 54 Agric
Dec. 448 (1995), and, in so doing, ordered that Respondent pay the $2,000 civil
penalty within 30 days from the date of service of the Order Lifting Stay Order
on Respondent and begin the 2-year disqualification period on the 30th day after
service of the Order Lifting Stay on Respondent. Respondent was served on

February 17, 1995, and Respondent's 2-year disqualification period began onMarch 19, 1995.

On February 15, 1996, Respondent filed a Motion to Correct Order,
(hereafter RM), on February 29, 1996, Complainant filed an Opposition to
Respondent's Motion to Correct Order, and on March 1, 1996, the matter wasreferred to the Judicial Officer.

Respondent requests that the Order Lifting Stay Order be amended so that
Respondent's 2-year disqualification period begins September 13, 1994, rather
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than March 19, 1995, and requests oral argument. The issues raised by

Respondent's motion are not complex and are controlled by established

precedents, and, thus, oral argument would appear to serve no useful purpose,
and Respondent's request for oral argument is denied.

Respondent asserts in his Motion to Correct Order that after the United States
Court of Appeals for the Sixth Circuit's June 15, 1994, denial of his petition for
rehearing, he had 90 days, ending September 13, 1994, in which to f'de a petition
for a writ of certiorari with the United States Supreme Court, and that his failure
to file such a petition within that 90-day period ended all possibility of further

proceedings for judicial review. (RM, pp. 1-2.) Respondent states:

Of course, Respondent and his Counsel of record assumed that the Stay
Order would be automatically lifted on September 13, 1994, because there
was no other remedy, and upon advice of Counsel the Respondent began

his disqualification in September, 1994 and has refrained from all activity
prohibited by the disqualification since said time. (RM, p. 2.)

The facts do not support Respondent's contention that the Order Lifting Stay
Order should be corrected.

Stay Orders issued by the Judicial Officer pending the outcome of judicial
review are not automatically lifted upon conclusion of judicial review. Instead,
action must be taken to lift Stay Orders and there are numerous instances in which
the Judicial Officer has lifted Stay Orders in administrative proceedings instituted
for violations of the Act. See, e.g., In re Jackie McConnell, 54 Agric Dec. 448

(1995); In re William Dwaine Elliott, 52 Agric. Dec. 1372 (1993); In re Larry
E. Edwards, 51 Agric. Dec. 436 (1992); In re Eldon Stamper, 43 Agric. Dec.
829 (1984); In re Preach Fleming, 43 Agric. Dec. 829 (1984); In re Joe
Fleming, 43 Agric. Dec. 829 (1984); In re Albert Lee Rowland, 43 Agric. Dec.
799 (1984).

In the instant case, Complainant filed a Report to the Judicial Officer and

Motion to Lift Stay on February 9, 1995. Under the applicable Rules of Practice,
7 C.F.R. § 1.143(d), Respondent's response to Complainant's motion was due
within 20 days after service of the motion on Respondent. Respondent did not
respond to Complainant's motion and tee Judicial Officer issued an Order Lifting
Stay Order on February 14, 1995, In re Jackie McConnell, 54 Agric Dec. 448
(1995), which was served on Respondent on February 17, 1995. The Order
Lifting Stay Order provides that the disqualification provisions of the Order
previously issued in the case, see, In re Jackie McConneU (Decision as to Jackie
McConnell) 52 Agric. Dec. 1156 (1993), shall become effective on the 30th day
after service of the Order Lifting Stay Order on Respondent, and Respondent shall
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pay the civil penalty within 30 days from the date of service of the Order Lifting
Stay Order on Respondent. Three hundred sixty-three days after service of the
Order Lifting Stay Order on Respondent, Respondent asks for a correction of the
Order Lifting Stay Order based upon Respondent's belief that the Stay Order was

automatically lifted on September 13, 1994. J Respondent's failure to respond to
Complainant's Report to the Judicial Officer and Motion to Lift Stay and the

substantial delay between service of the Judicial Officer's Order Lifting Stay
Order and the Respondent's Motion to Correct Order causes me to question the
credibility of Respondent's assertion that he believed in September 1994, that the
Stay Order issued in this case was automaticallyremoved on September 13, 1994.

Further, if Respondent did, in fact, believe that the Stay Order was

automatically lifted on September 13, 1994, compliance with the automatically
resuscitated Order would have caused Respondent to pay the assessed civil penalty
no later than October 13, 1994, within the required 30 days after Respondent
believed the Stay Order had been removed. Instead, Respondent paid the assessed
civil penalty by check dated June 8, 1995, which was after the Judicial Officer

issued the Order Lifting Stay Order, and over 8t/_ months after Respondent
asserts the Stay Order had been automatically removed.

Finall),, Respondent was free to move to have the Stay Order lifted at any time
after it was issued and free to move to have the 2-year disqualification period
begin on September 13, 1994, at any time prior to September 13, 1994. The

applicable Rules of Practice, 7 C.F.R. § 1.143(b)(1), provide that "[a]ny motion
will be entertained other than a motion to dismiss on the pleading." Respondent
was fully aware of his right to file motions under the applicable Rules of Practice
as evidenced by his Motion for Stay Pending Review, which he filed in the instam
case on December 13, 1993, and which was granted by the Judicial Officer
December 15, 1993, In re Jackie McCormell, 52 Agric. Dec. 1172 (1993).

I find no basis upon which to disturb the Order Lifting Stay Order issued
February 14, 1995, and Respondent's motion is therefore denied.

_Respondent statesthat he "has made repeated requests to correct and/or amend the Order to no

avail." (RM, p. 3.) I have thoroughly reviewed the record in this case and can find no request by
Respondent asking for a correction or amendment of the Order Lifting Stay Order prior to
Respondent's Motion To Correct Order filed February 15, 1996.
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In re: CECILJORDAN,SHERYLCRAWFORD, AND RONALDR. SMITH.
HPA Docket No. 91-0023.
Order Lifting Stay Order filed May 19, 1997.

DonaldA."l-racy,forComplainant.
DavidN Patterson.Willoughby.OH.[brRespondent.
Orderissuedby Wdliam_; Jenson.JudicialOfficer.

On November 19, 1993, the Judicial Officer issued a Decision and Order

holding that Sheryl Crawford (hereinafter Respondent) had violated the Horse
Protection Act of 1970, as amended (15 U.S.C. §§ 1821-1831), assessing

Respondent a $2,000 civil penalty, and disqualifying Respondent from showing,
exhibiting, or entering any horse, directly or indirectly through any agent,
employee, or other device, and from judging, managing, or otherwise participating
in any horse show, horse exhibition,or horse sale or'auction for a period of 1 year.
In re Cecil Jordan (Decision as to Sheryl Crawford), 52 Agric. Dec. 1214 (1993),

affd, 50 F.3d 46 (D.C. Cir.), cert. denied, 116 S.Ct. 88 (1995). Respondent was
served with the Decision and Order on November24, 1993 (Return Receipt). The
Decision and Order requires payment of the assessed civil penalty within 30 days
after service of the Decision and Order on Respondent and .imposes the

disqualificationperiod beginningon the 30th day after service of the Decision and
Order on Respondent, viz., December 24, 1993. Respondent appealed the
November 19, 1993, Decision and Order, and on February 16, 1994, Respondent

filed Respondent's Motion for Stay of Sanctions Pending Appeal, which the
Judicial Officer granted on February 28, 1994. In re Cecil Jordan, 53 Agric. Dec.
536 (1994) (Stay Order).

The agency decision was affirmed, Crawford v. United States Dep't of Agric.,
50 F.3d 46 (D.C. Cir. 1995), and on May 1, 1995, Respondent filed Respondent's
Motion to Initiate Sanctions. On May 1!, 1995, prior to a ruling on Respondent's
Motion to Initiate Sanctions, Respondent filed Respondent's Motion to Withdraw

Respondent's Motion to Initiate Sanctions and Respondent's Motion to Stay Order
of Judicial Officer. On June 6, 1995, the Judicial Officer granted Respondent's
Motion to Withdraw Respondent's Motion to Initiate Sanctions, and the Judicial
Officer granted Respondent's motion for stay pending the outcome of Respondentg
then contemplated petition for a writ ._,_"certiorari. In re Cecil ]ordan, 54 Agric.
Dec. 449 (1995) (Order to Stay Execution).

On October 2, 1995, the Supreme Court of the United States denied

Respondent's petition for a writ of certiorari. Crawford v. United States Dep't of
Agric., 116 S.Ct. 88 (1995). Subsequently, Complainant filed a Motion to Lift Stay
as to Sheryl Crawford, which was granted by the Judicial Officer on February 23,
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1996. In re Cecil Jordan, 55 Agric. Dec. 332 (1996). Pursuant to the February23,
1996, OrderLifting Stay, Respondent was to pay the assessed civil penalty within
30 days after service of the Order Lifting Stay on Respondent and the
disqualificationprovisions were to become effective on the 30th day after service
of the OrderLifting Stay on Respondent.

On March 25, 1995, Respondent filed Respondent's Motion to Stay Order of
Judicial Officer, pending the disposition of Respondent's Motion for Leave to File
Petition for Rehearing with the Supreme Courtof the United States. On March 28,

1996, priorto the 30th day after service on Respondent of the Order Lifting Stay,
a Temporary Stay Order was issued which provided Complainant with an
opportunity to respond to Respondent's Motion to Stay Order of Judicial Officer.

In re Cecil Jordan, 55 Agric. Dec. 333 (1996) (Temporary Stay Order).
Complainant filed Complainant's Opposition to Respondent'_ Motion to Stay

the Judicial Officer's'Order on April 1l, 1996. On May 8, 1996, a Stay Order,
which provides that the "Stay Order shall remain in effect until it is lifted by the
JudicialOfficer or vacated by a court of competent jurisdiction," was issued. 1_ re
Cecil Jordan, 55 Agric. Dec. 334 (Stay Order).

On May 7, 1996, Respondent filed a Motion for Leave to File Petition for

Rehearing with the Supreme Court o_"the United States. The Supreme Court
denied Respondent'smotion on June 24, 1996. Crawfordv. United States Dep't of
Agric., 116 S.Ct. 2574 (1996). On April 21, 1997, Complainant filed a Motion to

Judicial Officer to Lift Stay, on May 12, 1997, Respondent filed Respondent's
Response to Motion to Judicial Officer '_.qLift Stay (hereinafter Respondent's
Response), and on May 13. 1997, the case was referred to the .ludicial Officer for
a ruling.

Respondent does not oppose Complainant's Motion to Judicial Officer to Lift

Stay, but asserts thai she has served the entire l-year disqualification period
(Respondent's Response).

The Deci._ionand Order filed November 19, 1993. disqualifying Respondent,
became "effective on the 30th day after service of [theJ Order on Respondent," In
re Cecil Crawford, supra, 52 Agric Dec. at 1242, viz., December 24, i993. The
November 19, 1993, Order was stayed e;"fecuve February 28, 1994, and

Respondent was disqualified during the period December 24, 1993, through
February 27, 1994. At no other time was the disqualification provision in the

November 19, 1993, Decision and Orderin effect. Therefore, Respondent'sreques_
_hatshe be considered to have been disqualified during the period December 24,
1093, through February27, 1994, is granted, and Respondent's request that she be
considered to have been disqualified during the periods February. 28, 1994, to
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March 16, 1994; March 31, 1995, to June 6, 1995; and October 31, 1995, to

May 31, 1996, is denied.

Complainant's Motion to Judicial Officer to Lift Stay is granted. The Stay
Order issued in this proceedingon May 8, 1996, In re CeciIJordan_ 55 Agric. Dec.

334 (1996), is lifted, and the Order issued in in re Cecil Jordan (Decision as to

Sheryl Crawford), 52 Agric. Dec. 1214 (! 993), affld, 50 F.3d 46 (D.C. Cir.), cert.
denied, 116 S.Ct. 88 (1995), is effective as follows:

I. Respondent shall pay the civil penalty assessed in the Order within 30 days
after service of this Order Lifting Stay Order on Respondent; and

2. The disqualification provisions of the Order shall become effective on the
30th day after service of this Order Lifting Stay Order on Respondent?

In re: CECIL JORDAN, SHERYL CRAWFORD, AND RONALD R.
SMITH.

HPA Docket No. 91-0023.

Order on Reconsideration of Order Lifting Stay Order filed June 13, 1997.

DonaldA. Tracy.forComplainant.
David N. Patterson,Willoughby,OH. forRespondent.
Order issuedby WilliamG. Jenson. Judicial Officer.

On November 19, 1993, the Judicial Officer issued a Decision and Order

holding that Sheryl Crawford (hereinafter Respondent) had violated the Horse
Protection Act of 1970, as amended (15 U.S.C. §§ 1821-1831), assessing

Respondent a $2,000 civil penalty, and disqualifying Respondent from showing,
exhibiting, or entering any horse, directly or indirectly through any agent,

employee, or other device, and from judging, managing, or otherwise participating
in any horse show, horse exhibition,or horse sale or auction for a period of I year.
lnreCecilJordan(Decisionasto Sheryi Crawford), 52 Agric. Dec. 1214 (1993),

ajfd, 50 F.3d 46 (D.C. Cir.), cert. denied, 116 S. Ct. 88 (1995). Respondent was
served with the Decision and Order on November 24, 1993 (Return Receipt). The

Decision and Order requires payment of the assessed civil penalty within 30 days

_Respondcntshallbe.disqualifiedforaperiodof I yearasprovidedin the OrderissuedNovember
19.1993. Respondenlhasbeendisqualifiedinaccordancewiththe Orderforthe periodduringwhich
the OrderissuedNovember 19. 1993.was ineffect, vi:., December24, 1993, throughFebruary27,
1994(a periodof 66 days). lherelbrc.Respondentshallbedisqualifiedfor299 daysbeginningon the
30th day afterservice on Respondentof thisOrderLiftingStayOrder.
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after service of the Decision and Order on Respondent and imposes the
disqualificationperiod beginning on the 30th day atter service of the Decision and

Order on Respondent, vii=., December 24, 1993. Respondent appealed the
November 19, 1993, Decision and Order, and on February 16, 1994, Respondent
filed Respondent's Motion for Stay of Sanctions Pending Appeal, which the
Judicial Officer granted on February 28, 1994. In re Cecil Jordan, 53 Agric. Dec.
536 (1994) (Stay Order).

The agency decision was affirmed, Crawfordv. United States Dep't of.4gric.,
50 F.3d 46 (D.C. Cir. 1995), and on May i, 1995, Respondent filed Respondent's
Motion to Initiate Sanctions. On May 1 i, 1995, prior to a ruling on Respondent's
Motion to Initiate Sanctions, Respondent filed Respondent's Motion to Withdraw

Respondent's Motion to Initiate Sanctions and Respondent's Motion to Stay Order
of Judicial Officer. On June 6, 1995, the Judicial Officer granted Respondent's
Motion to Withdraw Respondent's Motion to Initiate Sanctions, and the Judicial

Officer granted Respondent's motion for stay pending the outcome of Respondent_
then contemplated petition for a writ of certiorari. In re Cecil Jordan, 54 A_ric.
Dec. 449 (1995) (Order to Stay Execution).

On October 2, 1995, the Supreme Court of the United States denied

Respondeni's petition for a writ of certiorari. Cra_ford v. United States Dep't of
,4gric., 116 S. Ct. 88 0995). Subsequently, Complainant filed a Motion to Li_
Stay as to Sheryl Crawford, which was granted by the Judicial Officer on February

23, 1996. In re CecilJordat_ 55 Agric. Dec. 332 (1996). Pursuantto the Februa_,
23, 1996, Order Lifting Stay, Respondent was to pay the assessed civil penalty
within 30 days after service of the Order Lifting Stay on Respondent, and the
disqualificationprovisions were to become effective on the 30th day after service
of the Order Lifting Stay on Respondent.

On March 25, 1995, Respondent filed Respondent's Motion to Stay Order of
Judicial Officer, pending the disposition of Respondent's Motion for Leave to File

Petition for Rehearing with the Supreme Court of the United States_ On March 28,
1996, prior to the 30th day after service on Respondent of the Order Lifting Stay,
a Temporary Stay Order was issued which provided Complainant with an
opportunity to respond to Respondent's Motion to Stay Order of Judicial Officer.
In re Cecil Jordan, 55 Agric. Dec. 333 (1996) (Temporary Stay Order).

Complainant filed Complainant's Opposition to Respondent's Motion to Stay
the Judicial Officer's Order on April I l, 1996. On May 8, 1996, a Stay Order,
which provides that the "Stay Order shall remain in effect until it is lifted by the
JudiciaIOfficeror vacated by a court ofcompetentjurisdiction,, was issued. Inre
Cecil Jordan, 55 Agric. Dec. 334 (Stay Order).
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On May 7, 1996, Respondentfiled a Motion for Leave to File Petition for
Rehearing with the Supreme Court of the United States. The Supreme Court
denied Respondent'smotion on June 24, 1996. CrawIordv. United States Dep't of
Agric., 116 S. Ct. 257 _,(1996). On April 21, 1997, Complainant filed a Motion to
Judicial Officer to Lift Stay; on May 12, 1907, Respondent filed Respondent's

Responseto Motion to Judicial Officer to Lift Stay; and on May 19, 19o7, I issued
an Order Lifting Stay Order, which states:

Respondent does not oppose Complainant's Motion to Judicial Officer
to Lift Stay, but asserts that she has served the entire l-year disqualification
period (Respondent's Response [to Motion to Judicial Officer to Lift Stay]).

The Decision and Order filed November 19, 1993, disqualil}'ing

Respondentbecame "effective on the 30th day after service of [the] Order
on Respondent," In re Cecil Crawford, supra, 52 Agric. Dec. at 1242, viz.,
Dec_zmber24, 1093. The November 19, 1993, Order was stayed effective
February 28, 1994, and Respondent was disqualified duriog the period
December24, 1993, through February 27, 19.o4. At no other time was the

disqualification provision in November 19, 1993, Decision and Order in
effect. Therefore. Respondent'srequest that she be consideredto have been

disqualified during the period December 24, 1993, through February 27,
1994, is granted, and Respoltdent's request that she be considered to have
been disqualified during the periods February 28, 1994, to March 16, i 994;
March 31, 1995, to June 6, 1995; and October 31, 1995, to May 31, 1996,
is denied.

In re Cecil Jordan, 56 Agric. Dec. , slip op at 3-4 (May 19, 1997) (Order

Lifting Stay Order).
On May 29, 1997, Respondent filed Respondent's Motion for Reconsideration

of Order Lifting Stay Order; on June 11, 1997, Complainant filed Complainant's

Opposition to "Respondent's Motion for Reconsideration of Order Lifting Stay
Order"; and on June 12, 1997, the case was referred to the Judicial Officer for
reconsideration.

Respondent reiteratesthe argument_ which she made in Respondent's Response
to Motion to Judicial Officer to Lift Stay. A good faith belief that a stay order has
been lifted does not in fact cause a stay order to be lifted. Instead, action must be
taken to lift a stay order. In re Jackie McConnell, 56 Agric. Dec. , slip op. at

3 (Mar. I l, 1996)(Ruling on Respondent's Motion to Correct Order Lir2ing Stay).
The Rules of Practice Governing Formal Adjudicatory Proceedings Instituted by
the Secretary (7 C.F.R. §§ I. 130-. 15I) (hereinafter Rules of Practice), which are
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applicable to this proceeding, provide that "[a]ny motion will be entertained other
than a motion to dismiss on the pleading." (7 C.F.R. § 1.143(b)(1).) Respondent
was fully aware of her right to file a motion to lift a stay and begin her
disqualificationperiod under the Rules of Practice, as evidenced by Respondent's
Motion to Initiate Sanctions filed May 1, 1995.

I find no basis upon which to disturb the Order Lifting Stay Order issued May
19, 1997, and Respondent's Motion for Reconsideration of Order Lifting Stay
Order is therefore denied. The Order issued in In re Cecil Jordan (Decision as to

Sheryl Crawford), 52 Agric. Dec. 1214 (1993), affd, 50 F.3d 46 (D.C. Cir.), cert.
denied, 116 S. Ct. 88 (1995) is effective, as follows:

1. Respondentshall pay the civil penaityassessed in the Order within 30 days
after service of this Order on Reconsideration of Order Lifting Stay Order on
Respondent; and

2. The disqualification provisions of the Order sllall become effective on the

30th day after service of this Order on Reconsiderationof Order Lifting Stay Orderon Respondent.

MUSHROOM PROMOTION RESEARCH and CONSUMER
INFORMATION ACT

In re: DONALD B. MILLS, INC., A CALIFORNIA CORPORATION, d/b/aDBM MUSHROOMS.
MPRCIA Docket No. 95-0001.

Order to Show Cause filed March 19, 1997.

Gregory Cooper, for Respondent.

Brian C. Leighton, Clovis, California, for Petitioner.
Richard T. Rossier. Washington. DC, for Intervenor.

Initial decision issued by Edwin S. Bernstein, Administrative Law Judge.
Order issued by William G. Jenson, Judicial Officer.

I . .

Respondent shall be dasquahfied for a period of I year as provided in the Order issued November

19, 1993. Respondenthas been disqualifiedin accordance with the Order for the period during which

the Order issued November 19, 1993, was in effect, viz., December 24, 1993, through February 27,
1994 (a period of 66 days). Therefore, Respondent shall be disqualified for 299 days beginning on

the 30th day after service on Respondent of this Order on Reconsideration of Order Lifting StayOrder.
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An examination of Administrative Law Judge Edwin S. Bernstein's Initial

Decision and Order and the appellate pleadings filed in this proceeding, subjudice,

reveals that any decision by the Judicial Officer herein would have to address the
First Amendment/commercialfree speech issues that are still being litigated in the

consolidated Wileman _and the consolidated Cal -Almond2 proceedings.

Consequently, I am issuing this Order for the parties and intervenor in this

proceedingto show cause why I should not forestall my Decision and Order herein,
and await the outcome of proceedings for judicial review of Wileman and Cal-
Almond.

Therefore, the parties and intervenor herein shall, within 20 days from the
service of this Order to Show Cause, file with the Hearing Clerk any cause showing

why I should not await the outcome of proceedings for judicial review of Wileman
and Cal-AImond before issuing a Decision and Order in the instant case.

In re: DONALD B. MILLS, INC., A CALIFORNIA CORPORATION, d/b/a

DBM MUSHROOMS.
MPRCIA Docket No. 95-0001.

Ruling on Order to Show Cause filed May 22, 1997.

GregoryCooper, forRespondent
BrianC. Leighton,Clovis, California,forPetitioner.
RichardT. Rossier,Washington.DC, forIntetvenor.
Ruling issued by WilliamG. .lenson.Judicial Oj_icer.

_lnre WilemanBros. & ElliotLInc. (Wilemani), 49 Agric.Dec. 705 (1990), and In re Wileman
Bros.& Flliotr Inc. (WilemanI1),50 Agric. Dec. 1165 (1991),affd, No. CV-F-90-473-OWW(E.D.
Cal. Jan.27, 1993);In re ,4sakawaFarms, 50 Agri¢.Dec. 1144 (1991), appealdocketed, CV-F-91-
686-OWW(ED. Cal. 1991);and In re GerawanCo. (Gerawan I), 50 Agric.Dec. 1338 (1991), and
In re GerawanCo. (Gerawanll), 50 Agric.Dec. 1363(1991), consolidatedwith CV-F-90-473-OWW
(E.D Cal.Sept.14, 1993)),affdinparl, rev'dinpart &remandecL58F.3d 1367(9th Cir. 1995),cert.
granted sub nora. GIickmanv. WilemanBros. & Elliott Inc., 116S.Ct. 1875 (1996).

'In re Saulsbury Orchards & ,41mondProcessing, Inc., 50 Agric.Dec. 23 0991), af/'d sub nora.
Cal.,41mond,Inc. v. USD`4.No. CV-F-914)64-REC (E.D. Cal. June3, 1992),printed in 51 Agric.
Dec. 44 (1992); in re Cal-`41mond,inc., 50 Agric.Dec. 171 (1991),aft'd, No. CV-F-91-122-REC
(ED Cal.June3, 1992),printedin 51Agric.Dec. 79 (1992); In re Cal-`41mond,Inc., 50Agric. Dec.
183 (1991), affd, No. CV-F-91-123-REC (ED. Cal. June3, 1992),printed in 51 Agric. Dec. 85
(1992);In re Cal.`41mond.lnc.,50Agric.Dec. 1445(1991),affd_ No. CV-F-91-685-REC (E.D. Cal.
July 8, 1992),affd in part. rev'd inpart & remanded, 14 F.3d 429 (gth Cir. 1993),final order and
judgment onremand, No. CV-F-91-064-REC(E.D Cal. Sept.6, 1994),affd inpart & rev'd inpart,
67 F.3d874 (gthCir. 1995).petitionfor cert.filed, 65 U.SL.W. 3052 (U.S. May20, 1996)(No. 95-
1879).
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On March 19, 1997, I issued an Order to Show Cause stating that an
examinationofAdministrativeLaw Judge Edwin S. Bemstein's Initial Decision and
Order and the appellate pleadings filed in this proceeding, subjudice, reveals that
any decision by the Judicial Officer in this proceeding would have to address the

First Amendment/commerciaifree speech issues that are still being litigated in the
consolidated Wilemar: and the consolidatedCal-Almond proceedings. I requested
the parties and the intervenor to show cause why I should not await the outcome

of the consolidated Wileman and the consolidated CaI-Almond proceedings before
issuing a Decision and Order in this proceeding.

Neither Petitioner nor the intervenor in this proceeding filed a response to the
Order to Show Cause. Respondent filed Respondent'sReply to Show Cause Orderwhich states:

This is in response to the order of _he Judicial Officer served on

[R]espondent on March 26, 1997, which seeks the parties' position on
whether the Decision and Order herein should be forestalled pending the
judicial review in Glickman v. Wileman and United States v. CaI-Almond,Inc.

Under Supreme Court practice, the decision of the high court in
Wileman should be issued by June 30, 1997. Presumably, the Cal-Almond

tin re Wileman Bros. & Elliatt, Inc. (Wileman I), 49 Agric. Dec. 705 (1990), and In re Wileman

Bros. & Elliott, Inc. (Wileman11), 50 Agric. Dec. 1165 (1991). aft'd, No. CV-F-90-473OWW (E.D.
Cal. Jan. 27, 1993); In re AsakawaFarms, 50 Agric. Dec. 1144 (1991), appeal docketed, CV-F-91-

686-OWW (E.D. Cal. 1991); and In re Gerawan Co. (Gerawan I), 50 Agric. Dec. 1338 (1991), and
In re Gerawan Co. (Gerawanll), 50 Agric. Dec. 1363 (1991), consolidatedwith CV-F-90-473-OWW

(E.D. Cal. Sept. 14, 1993)), aff_d in part, rev'd in part & remanded, 58 F.3d 1367 (9th Cir. 1995),
cert. granted sub nora. Glickman v. Wileman Bros. & EUiott Inc., 116 S.Ct. 1875 (1996).

21nre Saulsbury Orchards & Almond Processing, Inc., 50 Agric. Dec. 23 (1991), aff'd sub nora.
Cal-Almond, Inc. v. USDA, No. CV-F-91-O64-REC(E.D. Cal. June 3, 1992), printed in 51 Agric.
Dec. 44 (1992); In re Cal-Almond, Inc., 50 Agric. Dec. 171 (1991), aft'd, No. CV-F-91-122-REC

(E.D. Cal. June 3, 1992), printedin 51 Agric. Dec. 79 (1992); In re CaI-Almond, Inc., 50 Agric.

Dec. 183 (1991), aft'd, No. CV-F-91-123-REC(E.D. Cal. June 3, 1992),printedin 51 Agric. Dec.
85 (1992); In re Cal-Almond, Inc., 50 Agric. Dec. 1445 (19ql), aff_d, No. CV-F-91--685-REC(E.D.

Cal. July 8, 1992), aft'din part, rev'd in part & remanded, 14 F.3d 429 (9th Cir. 1993), final order
andjudgment on remand, No. CV-F-91-064-REC(E.D. Cal. Sept. 6, 1994), aff_d in part & rev'd in

part, 67 F.3d 874 (9th Cir. 1995), petition for cert. filed, 65 U.S.L.W. 3052 (U.S. May 20, 1996)(No. 95-1879).
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case will be remanded to the Ninth Circuit for modification in accordance

therewith. Since the Supreme Court's analysis of the First Amendment
issues will be instructive in this proceeding, there are sound reasons of

judicial economy for the course of action proposed by the Judicial Officer.
Therefore, [R]espondent has no objection to a short delay in this

proceeding.

No cause having been shown, I shall await the outcome of proceedings for

judicial review of Wileman and Cal-Almond before issuing a Decision and Order
in the instant proceeding.

PLANT QUARANTINE ACT

In re: MARIE DUVIVIER.

p.Q. Docket No. 97-0015.
Order Granting Motion To Dismiss Without Prejudice filed June 6, 1997.

DarleneM. Bolinger.for Complainant.
Respondent.Prose.
Order issuedby dames W. Ihmt. AdministrativeLaw Judge.

Complainant's motion to dismiss the complaint is granted. It is ordered that the
complaint filed herein on May 16, 1997, be dismissed without prejudice, this the

6'h day of June 1997.
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SHEEP PROMOTION RESEARCH and INFORMATION ACT

REENA SLOMINSKI v. DANIEL R. GLICKMAN, SECRETARY OF

AGRICULTURE, and THE UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OFAGRICULTURE.

SPRIA Docket No. 96-0001.

Order of Dismissal filed April 24, 1997.

ColleenA. Carroll, for Complainant.
Robert M. Cook, Yuma,AZ, forPetitioner.

Order issued byJames W. Hunt, ,4dmmistrative Law Judge.

Pursuant to the foregoing Motion to Dismiss, and good cause appearing, IT IS
ORDERED that th.e above-entitled action is dismissed.

DATED this 24t..___h.hday of April, 1997.

































































































































829

CONSENT DECISIONS

(Notpublishedherein-Editor)

AGRICULTURAL MARKETING AGREEMENT ACT

Consent Decision and Orderas to Encamacion Gonzalez. AMAA Docket No. 96-0004. 2/21/97.

Consent Decision and Orderas to WarehouseFarms, Inc. AMAA Docket No. 96-0004. 5/1/97.

Consent Decision and Orderas to Gary Gar_. AMAA Docket No. 96-0004.5/13/97.

Consent Decision and Orderas to Mission Shippers, Inc. AMAA Docket No. 96-0004. 5/13/97.

ANIMAL QUARANTINE and RELATED LAWS

Randy Tooker, d/b/a Quality Plus. A.Q. Docket No. 96-0019. 1/3/97.

Seaboard Marine of Florida, Inc. A.Q. Docket No. 96-0021. 1/24/97.

Jerry Stokes, d/b/a Stokes Livestock Co. A.Q. Docket No. 96-0010. 1/28/97.

Jim Byrd, d/b/a Oak Lake Cattle Co. A.Q. Docket No. 97-0(02. 3/27/97.

JuanVargas-Solarioand Pedro Mendoza. A.Q. Docket No. 97-0003. 3/27/97.

American Airlines, Inc. A.Q. Docket No. 97-0006. 4/3/97.

ANIMAL WELFARE ACT

City of Detroit, d/b/a Detroit Zoological Zoo. AWA Docket No. 96-0020.I/3/97.

Otto Siebert, d/b/a Story/and Petting Zoo. AWA Docket No. 95-0025. 1/6/97.
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Trans World Airlines, Inc., a Delaware Corporation. AWA Docket No.
96-0045. 1/6/97.

Joy Thomas and Lowell Thomas. AWA Docket No. 95-0016. 1/10/97.

Tommy Williams. AWA Docket No. 97-0013. 1/16/97.

Garry Garner and Sheila Garner. AWA Docket No. 95-0055. 1/28/97.

Antonio Alentado. AWA Docket No. 97-0008. 1/31/97.

United Airlines, Inc. AWA Docket No. 95-0008. 2/4/97.

Paul Kenis. AWA Docket No. 95-0040. 2/6/97.

Gloria Wippler, d/b/a Ojibway Kennels. AWA Docket No. 96-0068. 2/6/97.

City of Alexander City. AWA Docket No. 96-0075. 2/6/97.

Pearl Byrd and Homer Byrd, d/b/a Blue Mist Kennels. AWA Docket No. 96-
0066. 2/11/97.

]oAnn Lohse. AWA Docket No. 9643029. 2/14/97.

Donna Voeller. AWA Docket No. 96-0012. 2/26/97.

Ernest Yancy, dPo/a S & Y Kennel. AWA Docket No. 97-0004. 2/26/97.

Betty Hiatt, d/b/a Maple Valley Kennels. AWA Docket No. 9643049. 3/17/97.

Myron Dale Pugh and Barbara Pugh, d/b/a Oshkosh Kennel. AWA Docket No.
95-0050. 3/24/97.

Vivian Box. AWA Docket No. 95-0001. 3/27/97.

James Uriell and Charlette Uriell, d/b/a Rocking U Kennel. AWA Docket No.
95-0028. 3/31/97.

Gordon Messinger and Boonslick Enterprises or Boonslick Enterprises,

Incorporated. AWA Docket No. 95-0012. 4/1/97.
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Daniel J. Malone, d/b/a Dan's Green House. AWA Docket No. 96-0078.4/1/97.

Cheryl Hadaway and Dorpha Evans. AWA Docket No. 97-0005. 4/7/97.

County of Maui Department of Parks and Recreation d/b/a Maui Zoological an
Botanical Garden. AWA Docket No. 96-0058. 4/9/97.

Jimmy Carter and Blair Carter, d/b/a Flavious, Inc. AWA Docket No. 96-0019.4/18/97.

Lisa Hayungs, d/b/a Lishay Cattery. AWA Docket No. 96-0026. 4/23/97

Steven Kosier, d/b/a Strictly Endangered Animals. AWA Docket No.. 96-0067.4/23/97.

Lila Smith. AWA Docket No. 96-0082. 5/5/97.

Sharron Ann Griffin, d/b/a Dog-Gone Critters. AWA Docket No. 97-0018.5/7/97.

Molokai Ranch, Ltd. d/b/a Molokai Ranch Wildlife Conservation Park. AWA
Docket No. 97-0021. 5/7/97.

Christopher McDonald. AWA Docket No. 96-0028. 5/8/97.

David Richard Meeks and Lucia Fields-Meeks, d/b/a Hollywild Animal Park.
AWA Docket No. 96-0069. 5/12/97.

Willard Kramer, d/b/a VacationlandFarm. AWA Docket No. 97-0002. 5/16/97.

Linda L. Hall, d/b/a Linda's Chihuahuas. AWA Docket No. 96-0077. 5/19/97.

Anita L. Krauter, Dale S. Schwartz, and Bina Schwartz. AWA Docket No. 96-0030. 5/30/97.

Sharon Marie Richards, d/b/a Dun-N-Black Ranch and Kennels. AWA Docket
No. 97-0019. 5/30/97.
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Vincent L. Melton, dro/a Dun-N-Black Ranch and Kennels. AWA Docket No.
9742019. 6/11/97.

Barbara Coleman, dro/a Tombar Kennels. AWA Docket No. 964)083. 6/17/97.

Richard Wilcox and Donna Wilcox. AWA Docket No. 96-0024. 6/19/97.

Charles Sokol and Carol Sokol, dra/a Czech Kennels. AWA Docket No. 97-
0003. 6/19/97.

Lorin Womack, d/b/a Land O'Lorin Exotics. AWA Docket No. 974)017.
6/19/97.

Phyllis Jean Eskew, d/b/a Jean's House of Poodles. AWA Docket No. 96-0073.
6125197.

FEDERAL MEAT INSPECTION ACT

Chilli-o Frozen Foods, Inc. and Jeffrey L. Rothschild. FMIA Docket No.
96-0002. 3/24/97.

Champlain Beef Company, Inc. FMIA Docket No. 96-0009. 4/30/97.

Quality Meats, Inc. FMIA Docket No. 95-0004. 5/8/97.

Zenner's Quality Meat Products, Inc., a/k/a Zenner's Market.
FMIA Docket No. 97-004. 6/20/97.

John Krusinski, d/b/a Krusinski's Finest Meats. FMIA Docket No.
9%002. 6/24/97.

HORSE PROTECTION ACT

Hubert Perry and Hubert Gregory. HPA Docket No. 9743004. 2/26/97.

Scotty Bailess. HPA Docket No. 974)006. 3/17/97.

Glen Dorsey and Lewis Eugene Burdette. HPA Docket No. 97-0002. 4/3/97.

Rodney English and Teresa Adams. HPA Docket No. 9743003. 5/6/97.
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Charles Michael (Mikey) Oppenheimer and Charles M. (Mose) Oppenheimer.
HPA Docket No. 97-0001. 5/13/97.

Ronald Schneid. HPA Docket No. 97-0007. 6/19/97.

•PLANT QUARANTINE ACT

Transmarine Navigation Corp. P.Q. Docket No. 96-0005. 1/24/97.

Sun Country Airlines, Inc., d/b/a Sun Country Airlines Inflight Services. P.Q.
Docket No. 97-0007. 2/19/97.

POULTRY PRODUCTS INSPECTION ACT

Chilli-o Frozen Foods, Inc. and Jeffrey L. Rothschild.
PPIA Docket No. 96-0002. 3/24/97.

Quality Meats, Inc. PPIA Docket No. 95-0003. 5/8/97.

Zenner's Quality Meat Products, Inc., a/k/a Zenner's Market. PPIA
Docket No. 97-004. 6/20/97.

John Krusinski, d/b/a Krusinski's Finest Meats. PPIA Docket No.
97-002. 6/24/97.

VETERINARY ACCREDIDATION ACT

Dr. Delvin Randolph, D.V.M.V.A. Docket No. 96-0001. 3/11/97.




